#### IN THE

# SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

BURLEY GILLIAM, JR.,

Appellant,

vs.

CASE NO. 66,850

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Appellee.

Appellee.

DIRECT APPEAL FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA
Case No. 82-14766

INITIAL BRIEF OF APPELLANT

SHARON B. JACOBS, ESQUIRE Sharon B. Jacobs, P.A. Coconut Grove Bank Building 2701 S. Bayshore Drive Suite 305 Miami, Florida 33133 (305) 858-0444

AFR 4 . The

COUNSEL FOR APPELLANT

#

#### PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

Appellant, Burley Gilliam, Jr., will be referred to in this brief as "defendant" or "Mr. Gilliam." Appellee, the State of Florida, will be referred to as "appellee," "the State," or "the prosecutor(s)." References to the pleadings and transcripts of pre-trial, trial and sentencing contained in this Record on Appeal will be designated as "R," followed by the appropriate page number(s), set forth in parenthesis [Example: (R. 1)]. References to the transcripts of certain pre-trial proceedings in this case will be referred to as "Supp. R," followed by the appropriate page number(s), set forth in parenthesis [Example: (Supp. R. 1)].

#### STATEMENT OF THE ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW

Ι

THE TRIAL COURT COMMITTED REVERSIBLE ERROR IN FAILING AND REFUSING TO HOLD A PATE HEARING TO DETERMINE WHETHER BURLEY GILLIAM WAS COMPETENT TO STAND TRIAL OR BE SENTENCED, THUS VIOLATING APPELLANT'S RIGHTS GUARANTEED UNDER THE FEDERAL AND FLORIDA CONSTITUTIONS AS WELL AS FLORIDA'S STATUTES AND RULES.

ΙI

MR. GILLIAM DID NOT KNOWINGLY, VOLUNTARILY AND INTELLIGENTLY WAIVE HIS RIGHT TO BE REPRESENTED BY COUNSEL AT EITHER THE TRIAL OR SENTENCING HEARING, AND THE COURT'S FAILURE TO ASCERTAIN HIS COMPETENCY VIOLATED HIS FIFTH, SIXTH, EIGHTH AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENT RIGHTS.

III

THE TRIAL COURT COMMITTED REVERSIBLE ERROR IN THE CONDUCT OF THE JURY SELECTION PROCESS.

IV

THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN FAILING TO SUPPRESS THE STATE'S WARRANTLESS SEIZURE OF PHYSICAL EVIDENCE FROM THE TRUCK IN BURLEY GILLIAM'S POSSESSION AND CONTROL, WHERE THE TRUCK WAS NOT ABANDONED AND THE SEARCH WAS NOT VALIDLY CONSENTED TO.

V

THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN FAILING TO SUPPRESS THE STATEMENT MADE BY MR. GILLIAM WHICH WAS OBTAINED ILLEGALLY.

THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN FAILING TO GRANT A MISTRIAL OR STRIKE THE MEDICAL EXAMINER'S OPINION THAT CERTAIN MARKS ON THE DECEDENT'S HEAD WERE CAUSED BY THE STOMPING OF A SNEAKER, SINCE THE WITNESS CONCEDED THAT SHE WAS NOT AN EXPERT IN THIS AREA.

#### VII

THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN ALLOWING EVIDENCE AND TESTIMONY CONCERNING PHOTOGRAPHS AND MODELS WHICH FORMED THE BASIS OF DR. SOUVIRON'S EXPERT OPINION THAT BITE MARKS WERE CAUSED BY BURLEY GILLIAM.

#### VIII

THE COURT ERRED IN FAILING TO CONDUCT A RICHARDSON HEARING WHEN COUNSEL LEARNED FOR THE FIRST TIME DURING TRIAL THAT TWO WITNESSES HAD IDENTIFIED SOMEONE OTHER THAN MR. GILLIAM AS HAVING BEEN THE DRIVER OF THE TRUCK AT THE SCENE OF THE MURDER.

#### IX

THE COURT FAILED TO INSTRUCT THE JURY AS TO ALL NECESSARILY LESSER INCLUDED OFFENSES OF CAPITAL MURDER, AND MR. GILLIAM DID NOT MAKE A KNOWING AND INTELLIGENT WAIVER ON THE RECORD, THUS REVERSAL IS AUTOMATICALLY REQUIRED UNDER HARRIS V. STATE.

Х

ACTIONS AND INACTIONS BY THE BECAUSE OF **PROSECUTORS** AND BYTHE TRIAL COURT, FUNDAMENTAL ERRORS OF CONSTITUTIONAL SIGNIFICANCE OCCURRED DURING MR. GILLIAM'S AND THE CUMULATIVE EFFECT TRIAL, OF THE CONSTITUTIONAL ERRORS DENIED MR. GILLIAM HIS RIGHT TO A FAIR TRIAL AND DUE PROCESS OF LAW.

THE COURT ABUSED ITS DISCRETION IN ARBITRARILY REQUIRING AN ADVISORY JURY SENTENCING RECOMMENDATION, OVER MR. GILLIAM'S OBJECTION.

## XII

THE COURT ABUSED ITS DISCRETION IN FAILING TO ORDER A PRESENTENCE INVESTIGATION REPORT PRIOR TO SENTENCING BURLEY GILLIAM TO DIE IN THE ELECTRIC CHAIR.

## STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

Joyce Marlow was employed as a topless dancer at the Orange Tree Lounge in June, 1982. The bartender, Kathryn Gordon, testified that Joyce Marlowe had worked a double shift on June 8, 1982. (R. 542). In between her dancing acts, when Ms. Marlowe came out to pick up her tips, she had been sitting with a man and talking for about three hours. (R. 545-46). She described that man as weighing about 135 pounds, 5'7 or 5'8" tall with curly, blondish, shoulder-length hair and a mustache. (R. 547). This man had been in the bar for about five hours and had had about five Budweisers. He did not appear to be drunk or have difficulty walking. (R. 548).

The bartender testified that about 9 p.m. Ms. Marlowe told her that she could not hold out any longer, that she needed something to eat. Ms. Marlowe was "getting pretty drunk" (R. 543), because she had been drinking champagne all day and had not had anything to eat. Ms. Marlowe had been waiting for her boyfriend to pick her up to take her out to dinner, but he never arrived. (R. 543).

Ms. Marlowe went into the kitchen and told the bartender that she did not want to wait any longer for dinner and that a customer said he would take her down to the Clock Restaurant, which is about a half a mile away and bring her back. (R. 547).

The bartender estimated that Joyce had approximately \$500.00 cash on her when she left the topless bar. The bartender

identified Burley Gilliam in court as the man with whom Ms. Marlowe left the bar.

Joyce Marlowe's dead body was found on June 9, 1982, on a sandy beach approximately 156 feet from the roadway located north of 135th Street in Dade County. (R. 463-466). There were no witnesses. The medical examiner found food remains in her stomach, showing that she had been to dinner several hours before her death. (R. 891). Photographs of the scene showed tire marks in the sand, a lady's purse, and marks in the sand which looked as if the body or some other object had been dragged across the sand. (R. 470-473). A left shoe with a white sock in it was found 84 feet from the body. (R. 476).

The cause of death was strangulation. (R. 868). She was also sexually assaulted and there were bruises on her arms and head and bite marks on her chin, ear and breast. (R. 868-79). One of her nipples had been bitten while she was alive such that it was almost hanging off of the breast. (R. 871). A blunt object had been forced into her anus while she was still alive, causing great trauma and bleeding. (R. 880-81). There were certain head injuries and circular marks left on her head. Over Mr. Gilliam's objection, the medical examiner testified that she believed that those head injuries were caused by some one stomping on her head, while she was alive, while wearing the sneakers found one at the scene and one in a truck assigned to Mr. Gilliam. (R. 888-89).

Appellant, Burley Gilliam, Jr. was charged by indictment with the first degree murder (§782.04, <u>Fla. Stat.</u>) of Joyce Marlowe, with her sexual assault (§794.011(3) <u>Fla. Stat.</u>) and grand theft (§812.014, <u>Fla. Stat.</u>). (R. 1134A-1135).

At his trial, Dectective Merritt testified, over defense objection, that Burley Gilliam had made an oral inculpatory statement, and an exculpatory statement that "he didn't have sex with [the decedent] because when he was drinking he couldn't get an erection." (R. 750).

Assistant Public Defender, Art Koch, was appointed to represent Mr. Gilliam.

In November, 1983, the court appointed (R. 1327) Drs. Haber, Jacobson and Mutter to evaluate Mr. Gilliam to determine his competency to stand trial. Dr. Stillman examined Mr. Gilliam at defense counsel's request. On November 28, 1983, the assistant public defender stipulated that the testimony of each of the court appointed doctors would be consistent with their respective reports binding Mr. Gilliam's competency to stand trial. (R. 10). Dr. Stillman, however, found that Mr. Gilliam was not competent. (R. 8). Mr. Koch waived Mr. Gilliam's rights under Fla.R.Crim.P. 3.211 to cross examine and present the witnesses. (R. 11). The court held that Mr. Gilliam was competent to stand trial. (R. 12).

The court granted the Motion for Leave to File Notice of Intent to Rely on Insanity Defense one year late. (R. 13-14).

The court then commenced evidentiary hearings on the previously filed defense 1) Motion to Suppress Statements to Dectective Merritt, 2) Motion to Suppress Statements to Judge Gray, 3) Motion to Suppress Physical Evidence and Motion to Suppress Photograph Identification.

Mr. Gilliam's assistant public defender put on the record that he had a concern about his ability to effectively represent Mr. Gilliam regarding those motions because he was unable to advise Mr. Gilliam as to whether to go forward with the insanity defense until he received additional neuropsychological test results and various hospital records. (R. 4-7). Therefore, the defense attorney stated that he could not advise Mr. Gilliam whether to testify at the Motion to Suppress hearing. (R. 7).

Mr. Gilliam and his assistant public defender both advised the court that they could not get along with each other. The basis for the conflict was that the attorney refused to provide Mr. Gilliam with copies of medical reports and other documents pertaining to his defense. (Supp.R. 18). The court granted the public defender's Motion for Conflict (Supp.R. 63), and the court conducted colloquys with Mr. Gilliam as to whether he desired or was able to represent himself. Mr. Gilliam told the court that he did not want to represent himself and the court found that he was unable to represent himself. (Supp.R. 54).

The court appointed Stuart Adelstein and William Surowiec to represent Mr. Gilliam. It came to the attention of the court, on

numerous occasions, that Mr. Gilliam was having a similar problem with these attorneys regarding copies of all pleadings, reports and discovery. (R. 4; 162).

A week before his trial was scheduled Mr. Gilliam again advised the court that he was disatisfied with his court appointed attorneys because they had failed to provide him with certain requested materials particularly information regarding the penalty phase and medical reports. (R. 153-54; 169).

Attorneys Adelstein and Surowiec related to the court their unsuccessful attempts to communicate with Mr. Gilliam and his inability to understand or assist them. They requested that Mr. Gilliam be examined to determine his mental competency to stand trial. (R. 174).

The court had previously been advised that Mr. Gilliam had a history of psychiatric problems and had been taking psychotropic medication while in the jail. (R. 1325). Mr. Gilliam had a history of epilepsy and at the time of trial he was taking several prescribed medications, specifically dilantin and phenobarbital. Without specifying the grounds reasonably leading him to question Mr. Gilliam's competency, the trial judge ordered Dr. Leonard Haber to examine Mr. Gilliam and return a report the following day. (R. 177-185).

The following day, January 23, 1985, Dr. Haber testified that, on the preceding evening, he had gone to the Dade County jail and attempted to conduct a competency evaluation on

Mr. Gilliam. (R. 185). Dr. Haber testified that he was only able to speak with the defendant for "less than five minutes" (R. 186) which is "not a usual competency examination." (R. 186). Nevertheless, Dr. Haber believed that he was able to render an opinion as to Mr. Gilliam's competency.

On cross examination, Dr. Haber admitted that he had not performed a complete competency examination on Gilliam either during the preceding evening or on that morning (R. 188), and he further admitted that he based his opinion upon the examination he performed over a year earlier in November of 1983. (R. 187-188). Dr. Haber conceded that he did not know whether certain medications had been ordered for Gilliam or whether or not he was receiving required medication. Dr. Haber acknowledged that phenobarbital is a medication prescribed to control seizures (R. 188) and that dilantin is a medication also frequently used to control seizures. (R. 190). Dr. Haber advised the court that such medications might effect one's competency. (R. 190).

The trial judge made a finding that Mr. Gilliam was competent to stand trial based upon Dr. Haber's limited examination.

The trial judge further found that Mr. Gilliam's requests to discharge appointed counsel and have a different attorney was tantamount to a request to represent himself. (R. 116). The court proceeded with a colloquy pursuant to <u>Faretta v.</u> California, 422 U.S. 806 (1975), even though the jail had failed

to provide Mr. Gilliam his required medication that morning. (R. 192-93). The trial judge determined that the trial would proceed with Mr. Gilliam representing himself. No evaluation, inquiry or hearing was conducted to determine whether Mr. Gilliam was competent to waive his right to counsel. Stuart Adelstein and William Surowiec remained in the courtroom as standby counsel throughout the trial.

It was four days before the trial date, that Mr. Gilliam learned that he would be proceeding <u>pro se</u>. The court denied his request for continuance despite the undisputed fact that until that day his attorneys had not provided him access to any of the pleadings, medical reports, depositions or other discovery necessary for his defense. Mr. Gilliam had not even been advised of the state's witnesses.

During the course of the trial and penalty phase, Mr. Gilliam's demeanor deteriorated, he acted irrationally, cried (R. 756) and otherwise exhibited unusual behavior which prompted standby counsel to request an emergency medical and mental competency evaluation numerous times (see Minutes of Clerk, R. 1127-54). Without ordering an exam or holding a hearing, the trial judge made a finding on each occasion that Mr. Gilliam was competent. The trial judge concluded that Mr. Gilliam was faking. (R. 1122).

In many asides for purposes of the appellate record, the trial judge explained his reasoning. The trial judge explained

that he "pushed" (R. 1124) Mr. Gilliam to trial to make an example of him for others awaiting trial.

After the advisory sentence was rendered, the trial judge apologized to the jurors, explaining that he made a decision to allow Mr. Gilliam, who had a 10th grade education, to represent himself in a capital case in order to send a message to those awaiting trial, that "if you don't avail yourself of [appointed counsel], then you can twist in the wind like you saw here this week." (R. 1116).

There were no eyewitnesses to the murder. The state's case against Mr. Gilliam was established through circumstantial evidence. The primary connection between Mr. Gilliam and the scene of the murder revolved around a truck which Mr. Gilliam had been assigned by his employer to drive to Florida. (R. 659-660).

The truck had been stuck in the sand at the scene. Two witnesses picnicking by the lake testified that they saw the driver at the scene and helped him pull out the truck onto the road, but it wouldn't start. (R. 605-606). Both witnesses testified that they identified the driver from a police photo display, but did not see that man in court. (R. 606-608; 614). The prosecutor never advised Mr. Gilliam or his attorneys that these witnesses had identified someone other than appellant.

The truck and its driver were towed to the Cloverleaf Amoco Station (R. 621), but the tow truck driver could not identify Mr. Gilliam as the driver. (R. 622).

The gas station attendant, Armando Rago, remembered filling out a work order at the request of the driver, and calling a taxi cab for the driver because the mechanic would not be in until the next day. (R. 629).

Even though Mr. Rago could not identify the signature on the work order as belonging to Burley Gilliam, it was admitted into evidence as State's Exhibit No. 24, over Mr. Gilliam's objection as to lack of predicate. (R. 627; 645-648).

Metro Dade Police Department crime lab documents expert, Frank Norwitch, testified that he had taken handwriting exemplars from Burley Gilliam (State's Composite Exhibits 33 and 34). (R. 802-803). Based upon his comparison of the exemplars with the work order for the Cloverleaf Amoco Station (State's Exhibit 24), it was his opinion that all documents were authored by the same individual, Burley Gilliam. (R. 800).

Taxi cab driver, Freedie King, testified that in June, 1982, he worked for Metro Cab. On the afternoon in question (R. 652-653), he picked up a man at the Amoco Station. The cab driver described this man as being a nervous cigarette smoker, perhaps smoking Marlboros, whom he delivered to the 163rd Street bus station. He identified the gentleman as Burley Gilliam. (R. 654).

The trial judge allowed into evidence, over a defense objection, certain physical evidence found in the truck after a warrantless search. A right sneaker and white sock found inside

the truck formed a matching pair with a left sneaker and sock found at the lake. (R. 668-669). The medical examiner testified, over defense objection, that although it was outside of her area of expertise, she had performed certain experiments upon which she based her conclusion "to a reasonable medical certainty" that trauma marks on the decedent's head were caused by impact from those sneakers.

Dr. Souviron testified that certain marks found on the decedent's body matched Burley Gilliam's teeth. (R. 906-952). Dr. Souviron based his opinion upon certain photographs with overlays which had not been disclosed to Mr. Gilliam's attorneys despite a specific request made by written motion as well as at his deposition. (R. 900-906). The court refused to conduct a hearing pursuant to <u>Richardson v. State</u>, 246 So.2d 771 (Fla. 1971).

The jury returned a verdict of not guilty as to the count for grand theft, and guilty as to first degree murder and as to sexual assault (R. 1453-1455), however, the court had failed to instruct as to all lesser included offenses of capital murder.

The trial judge gave the jury a lunch break, then immediately conducted the penalty phase hearing. Mr. Gilliam initially requested to waive the advisory jury recommendation proceeding (R. 1065) or to be absent during that proceeding. When the trial judge denied his requests, Mr. Gilliam asked that standby counsel be dismissed (R. 1068-1069) and he refused to

participate. The Court refused to have Mr. Gilliam examined for competency and "assumed" (R. 1068) that he wanted to represent himself.

During the penalty hearing, however, Mr. Gilliam testified upon questioning by standby counsel. (R. 1096). He told the jury that he did not get a fair trial and asked the jury to sentence him to death. (R. 1096). Mr. Gilliam made no closing statement.

The trial judge, upon the jury recommendation (R. 1111), imposed upon Mr. Gilliam the sentence of death by electrocution. (R. 1126-1127).

The Court based its imposition of the death penalty upon finding three aggravating circumstances: (1) the capital felony was committed while engaged in the commission of sexual battery §921.141(5)(d), Florida Statutes; (2) Mr. Gilliam had been previously convicted of another capital offense involving the use of threat or violence, pursuant to §921.141(5)(b), Florida Statutes; and (3) the capital felony was especially heinous, atrocious or cruel under §921.141(5)(i), Florida Statutes. (R. 1461). The trial judge found no mitigating factors applied. (R. 1461).

The defense motion for new trial was denied (R. 1465-1466a), and this appeal followed.

# SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

Ι

THE TRIAL COURT COMMITTED REVERSIBLE ERROR IN FAILING AND REFUSING TO HOLD A <u>PATE</u> HEARING TO DETERMINE WHETHER BURLEY GILLIAM WAS COMPETENT TO STAND TRIAL OR BE SENTENCED, THUS VIOLATING APPELLANT'S RIGHTS GUARANTEED UNDER THE FEDERAL AND FLORIDA CONSTITUTIONS AS WELL AS FLORIDA'S STATUTES AND RULES.

The trial judge observed behavior in Mr. Gilliam which could have been interpreted either as reasonable grounds to warrant a competency hearing orthat Burley Gilliam was faking The trial judge committed reversible error in incompetency. failing to order a competency hearing in accordance with Pate v. Robinson, 383 U.S. 375 (1966), but rather in quessing that the appellant was "crazy like a fox." The one evaluation ordered by the judge was inadequate because the one psychologist appointed testified that he did not perform a complete evaluation on Mr. Gilliam and was unaware that Mr. Gilliam was taking prescribed medication, which he conceded "might affect one's competency."

ΙI

MR. GILLIAM DID NOT KNOWINGLY, VOLUNTARILY AND INTELLIGENTLY WAIVE HIS RIGHT TO BE REPRESENTED BY COUNSEL AT EITHER THE TRIAL OR SENTENCING HEARING, AND THE COURT'S FAILURE TO ASCERTAIN HIS COMPETENCY VIOLATED HIS FIFTH, SIXTH, EIGHTH AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENT RIGHTS.

Even if Mr. Gilliam was appropriately found competent to stand trial, the court utterly failed to ascertain whether he was competent to waive counsel, which is measured by a higher standard. In addition, the <u>Faretta</u> inquiry did not establish that Mr. Gilliam voluntarily and intelligently waived that right, even if he was competent to do so.

III

THE TRIAL COURT COMMITTED REVERSIBLE ERROR IN THE CONDUCT OF THE JURY SELECTION PROCESS.

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