#### IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO. 66,850

BURLEY GILLIAM, JR.

Appellant,

vs.

THE STATE OF FLORIDA,

Appellee.

AN APPEAL FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE ELEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT IN AND FOR DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA CRIMINAL DIVISION

#### ANSWER BRIEF OF APPELLEE

JIM SMITH Attorney General Tallahassee, Florida

STEVEN T. SCOTT Assistant Attorney General Department of Legal Affairs 401 N.W. 2nd Avenue, Suite 820 Miami, Florida 33128 (305) 377-5441

###

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

#### SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

Ι

Appellant's claim of a <u>Pate</u> violation is without merit. He was afforded two separate competency hearings and produced no evidence at them. He also failed to exhibit any behavior during trial indicative of the need to submit him to further evaluation.

II

Appellant failed to show any bona fide doubt about his competency to proceed <u>pro</u> <u>se</u>. Since he was clearly mentally competent at all times, it was unnecessary to afford him any special consideration upon accepting his waiver of counsel.

Appellant's waiver was totally free of error. He was made aware of all the ramifications of proceeding pro se.

III

Appellant waived the right to participate in jury selection by his obstructionist behavior. The court gave him three chances to participate, and he rejected each overture.

Even if he did not waive participation, the overwhelming nature of the evidence against him renders any error harmless.

The trial court's comments to the jury were not at all indicative that the court was expressing its belief that appellant was guilty.

IV

Appellant had no standing to object to the search of the vehicle. Consent to search was validly given by the lessee. Appellant also abandoned the truck upon fleeing the jurisdiction. In any event, it was without a doubt inevitable that the evidence found in the truck would have been recovered by other means.

٧

Appellant's confession was volunteered to police. No evidence was proffered to the contrary.

VI

Appellant's request for a mistrial was properly rejected, where the medical examiner merely sought to

qualify her own opinion as to the cause of the injury inflicted upon the victim. To argue that reversible error occurs whenever an expert places a <u>caveat</u> in his or her opinion is ludicrous.

VII

Appellant's claim of a <u>Richardson</u> violation regarding plastic overlays is totally specious. Evidence submitted by appellee shows that appellant was duly informed of the existence of those overlays before trial. His failure to make any attempt to discover them cannot be blamed on the State.

#### VIII

Appellant's claim that some witnesses picked out some "mystery suspect" from photo line-ups is incorrect. No second suspect ever existed. Appellant is simply misconstruing the record below.

IX

Appellant clearly and without doubt waived his right to have certain lesser included offenses read to the jury.

Appellant's claim that "cumulative errors" served to deprive him of a fair trial is totally without merit. There was no prosecutorial misconduct, no abuse of discretion in not giving him a continuance, no "overreaching" by the State, and no error in introducing the copy of appellant's Texas rape conviction during the penalty phase.

ΧI

The trial court has the option of asking the jury for a recommended sentence. Appellant has not shown how the court abused that discretion by asking for one here.

XII

The trial court did not abuse its discretion by not ordering a presentence investigation report. The court was already aware of many details of appellant's background.

#### **ARGUMENT**

Ι

THE APPELLANT WAS INITIALLY FOUND COMPETENT TO STAND TRIAL, AND NOTHING OCCURRED DURING TRIAL THAT COULD REASONABLY HAVE INDICATED THE NEED TO CONDUCT ANOTHER COMPETENCY EVALUATION OF HIM.

A cogent analysis of this issue requires a detailed look at the entire record. Due to the nature of the subject matter and volume of the record, appellee recognizes the need to proceed with this issue in an organized manner.

Accordingly, the following steps will be taken:

- 1) the appellant will be profiled,
- 2) a general overview of the trial will be presented with an eye to those aspects having a bearing on appellant's competency,
- 3) events germane to the issue of competency will be presented in chronological order and in some detail,
- 4) the legal standard which governs this issue will be stated, and
- 5) the actions of the appellant will be analyzed in light of that standard.

### A PROFILE OF BURLEY GILLIAM

Appellant was thoroughly examined by three experts in November of 1983. All three doctors agreed: appellant was sane at the time he committed his crimes and competent to stand trial for those crimes.

The evaluations submitted to the trial court by the doctors have been made part of the record. (S.R. 1-12).

Appellee submits the following summaries of those evaluations. First, Dr. Jacobson:

Thirty-five year old caucasian male; ninth grade education; previously incarcerated in Texas for rape; suffered head injury while in Texas prison; possible seizure disorder which could be a ruse or possibly related to alcohol withdrawal; admits to having lied in the past about having "seizures"; history of drug and alcohol abuse; receiving anticonvulsive medication; has briefly seen a psychiatrist in the past; capable of carrying on a rational and goal-directed conversation, but seeks to change the subject if not to his liking; irritable with no hallucinations; aware of the charges and penalty if convicted; able to describe the role of judge and state attorney; able to relate to his attorney; can testify relevantly; motivation to help himself is acceptable; coping well with stress of incarceration; does not suffer from mental disorder; sane at time of offense; competent to stand trial now.

#### Dr. Mutter observed:

Ninth grade education; served time in Texas for rape; claims epilepsy from head injury; counselled by psychiatrist while incarcerated in Texas; history of drug and alcohol abuse; receiving anti-convulsive medication; conscious suppression of information, would not discuss details of case; no mood swings; has organized thought processes, goal directed; no hallucinations or delusions; understands role of judge, jury, prosecutor, and his attorney; understands charges and possible penalty; sociopathic personality; sane at the time of offense and competent to stand trial now.

### Finally, Dr. Haber:

Ninth grade education; claims "brain damage" from a beating received while incarcerated in Texas; takes anti-convulsive medication; history of drug and alcohol abuse; denies having had mental problems; no hallucinations; not informative during interview, providing no details of the crime; logical and coherent responses; no mood or though disturbances; has a sense of humor; resigned to prison life; aware of the charges and adversary nature of the system; can aid in own defense; sane at the time of offense and competent to stand trial now.

Appellant was seen as a man clearly lacking any characteristics indicative of incompetency. There was nothing

remarkable about him. The trial court accordingly adjudged him competent. (Tr. 12).

Dr. Haber had a second opportunity to evaluate appellant. It came fourteen months later, in January of 1985. He stated that after observing the appellant:

"\* \* interacting with the Court and with His Honor, obviously comprehending everything that went on, showing considerable alertness as to his rights and what he wants to do and doesn't want to do \* \* \* although [the appellant was] uncooperative, it was apparent to [Dr. Haber] that the subjective strong role, highly opinionated, antagonistic, but quite coherent, rational, aware of what he was doing and intent to do exactly what he wanted to do and nothing else [was the] essence of competency. \*\*\*"

(Tr. 191).

These observations by Dr. Haber of appellant and his behavior were made on the very eve of trial. The picture provided the trial court showed a man who had not changed one bit since he was first evaluated. This was a sane, competent individual who insisted on having things his way. He was articulate, strong, rational, and coherent. In Dr. Haber's words, appellant's "subjective strong role" was "the essence of competency."

#### GENERAL OVERVIEW OF THE TRIAL

Appellant's competency was virtually a non-issue below. It came up when Art Koch moved the trial court for a mental examination of his client in November of 1983, a full seventeen months after appellant's arrest and return to Florida. Experts appointed by the court returned their findings. They came to identical conclusions. The issue was apparently resolved, and Mr. Koch did not raise it again.

The next people to have close contact with appellant were Stuart Adelstein and William Surowiec. They were his attorneys for ten months, from March of 1984 to January of 1985. They also failed to bring any eccentric behavior to the court's attention during their incumbency which would have indicated that appellant was in need of evaluation.

Appellant's "problems" arose from his uneasy relationships with his attorneys. His recurring complaint over the twenty-nine months before his trial was that he was not allowed access to all the "materials" filed in the case. He also wanted to assume a more active role in his defense. It is important to point out that during all the hearings called to discuss withdrawal of counsel (and there were several), at no time did any attorney communicate his belief that the appellant was in any way incompetent. On the

contrary, all attorneys maintained that their relationships with their client simply deteriorated as he gradually refused to cooperate with them any longer. This general uncooperativeness always seemed to become more acute the closer the case was to trial.

Appellant's trial lasted five days. During that time he was totally in charge of his faculties. His allegedly "irrational" behavior was an act. The record is full of statements by the trial court referring to how the appellant would completely compose himself and behave normally the minute the jury left the courtroom. All of appellant's antics were either purely obstructionist or intended for jury consumption. Appellant's condition was perfectly stable and unremarkable during the twenty-nine months prior to his trial. He underwent no change during the <u>five days</u> his trial lasted.

### KEY EVENTS IN DETAIL

Appellant has made reference to several statements or incidents in order to point out that he was incompetent, or at least deserving of a competency evaluation. Appellee will not follow that example of taking matters out of context. Instead, appellant's conduct will be broken down into manageable periods of time and viewed logically. While it is impossible to discuss everything which took place

below in this brief, appellee will attempt to analyze hearings, colloquies, and appellant's performance relative to contemporaneous objections and cross-examination during trial. Appellee will also catalog those instances during trial where appellant was allowed to confer with his standby counsel. In the end, it will become clear that nothing ever occurred to indicate the need to submit appellant to a competency evaluation. Appellant was fully competent to stand trial.

#### EARLY HEARINGS

The record contains transcripts of the following hearings:

- a) November 28, 1983. Hearing on appellant's competency and motions to suppress (Tr. 1-149);
- b) January 14, 1984. Hearing on withdrawal of Art Koch from the case (S.Tr. 70-94);
- c) February 1, 1984. Hearing on withdrawal of Koch (S.Tr. 22-35)
- d) February 2, 1984. Hearing on withdrawal of Koch (S.Tr. 36-56);
- e) February 7, 1984. Hearing on withdrawal of Koch (S.Tr. 57-68);
- f) March 13, 1984. Hearing on appointment of Adelstein (R. 1347-1357);
- g) October 31, 1984. Hearing on withdrawal of Adelstein (S.Tr. 1-12);
- h) January 10, 1985. Hearing on withdrawal of Adelstein (S.Tr. 13-21);

- i) January 21, 1985. Hearing on withdrawal of Adelstein (Tr. 150-164);
- j) January 22, 1985. Hearing on withdrawal of Adelstein and self-representation (Tr. 165-182); and
- k) January 23, 1985. Hearing on competency and self-representation (Tr. 183-211).

Those hearings are summarized as follows:

## NOVEMBER 28, 1983:

Art Koch stipulated to the contents of the experts' reports on appellant's mental condition after first consulting with his client. (Tr. 8-10). He would not go so far as to actually stipulate that appellant was competent, but he offered no evidence to the contrary and presented no dissuasive argument to the court. At the end of the hearing he stated that "the issue of competency has been determined". (Tr. 147). Appellant did not testify.

## January 14, 1984:

Appellant engaged in prolonged colloquies with the court. He was upset that Mr. Koch had not provided him with all the pleadings and depositions in his case. Mr. Koch stated that the friction present in their relationship was

due exclusively to appellant's desire to make decisions as to how his case should be handled. (S.Tr. 80-81). Appellant is revealed as someone aware of his rights and the seriousness of the charges. He was rational and coherent. There was not a hint of incompetence present.

### February 1, 1984:

Mr. Koch reported a further breakdown in communications with his client. Koch made no suggestion that this was due to incompetence. Appellant was not present.

## February 2, 1984:

With his trial date fast approaching, appellant reiterated his feelings that Mr. Koch was not giving him effective representation. At one point he asked, "How can I go to trial with a Public Defender that tells me that he says I can't beat your case? There's no sense in my trying to fight it. How can I go to trial with somebody like that?" That remark alone should erase any doubt as to appellant's thought processes—he was rightfully concerned about his case and aware of what he faced. Later on appellant showed that he was going to fight the system:
"Look. I would prefer death over life with a mandatory 25.
Okay? But I'm not going to kill myself either. I'm going to make the Court, the law do it." (S.Tr. 53). Appellant

again came across as a very coherent and rational person fully aware of the process to which he was being submitted.

## February 7, 1984:

After Mr. Koch's firing, appellant behaved in his usual aggressive manner, making pertinent requests—"Judge Mastos, I would like the material on my case that the prosecutors got. I think I'm entitled to that." Appellant was consistent in that he wanted to be fully informed of all details of his case. He continued to behave rationally and coherently.

## March 13, 1984:

Appellant began with his complaint of lack of cooperation from his former attorney regarding case materials. He stated that he would be happy to go to trial with Mr. Adelstein if he could have his "materials". (R. 1351). Adelstein accepted the appointment with the caveat that he needed to have the appellant's cooperation, which was promised. (R. 1354).

## October 31, 1984:

Mr. Adelstein reported appellant's lack of cooperation.

Adelstein cited appellant's fit of anger with him.

Appellant eventually conceded that he was satisfied with Adelstein (S.Tr. 9-10), and that he had just lost his temper.

## January 10, 1985:

Appellant continued to withhold cooperation from his attorneys. The problem was apparently over Adelstein's failure to provide medical reports to his client. (S.Tr. 17). Appellant also made known his fear of being assaulted in jail (S.Tr. 18, 19), and requested special treatment.

## January 21, 1985:

Appellant's second trial date was near. He was now adamant that he wanted to fire his attorneys. The court explained the ramifications of that decision. The court also ordered appellant to prepare a list of the material he was "missing". (Tr. 160).

Appellant did not talk at any length with the court. The important aspect of this hearing is that Adelstein never mentioned that appellant was in need of a mental evaluation. In fact, Adelstein mentioned a recent conversation between himself and appellant concerning the testimony of Dr. Souviron, the expert who performed dental experiments. (Tr. 154). Adelstein did not indicate any inability on the

appellant's part to converse or understand what was going on. The logical conclusion one is forced to draw is that Adelstein had no trouble communicating even the most technical of details to his client. The only problem appears to be appellant's desire to be uncooperative.

## January 22, 1985:

Appellant again expressed his desire to fire his attorneys. When the court informed him that such a move would mean self-representation, appellant opted for self-representation. Adelstein moved to have Dr. Haber examine appellant. The court stated, "But, you know, this court is assuming he is competent, I have no reason to doubt it." The court and Adelstein went on to state that they only considered the mental evaluation as a <u>Faretta</u> precautionary move to make sure the waiver of counsel was valid. (Tr. 176-178). The State did not oppose the motion, since the evaluation was going to be performed that evening and no delay would occur. (Tr. 177). Under those circumstances, appellant was ordered evaluated.

# January 23, 1985:

Dr. Haber began the hearing by erasing any doubts about appellant's competency. (Tr. 191).<sup>2</sup> Appellant then engaged

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